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CERTIFIED PUSLIC

Egns

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Auburn

Auburn, New York

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Auburn, New York as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the City of Auburn, New York’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Auburn Industrial
Development Authority and the Auburn Housing Authority, which represents 100 percent of the City's discretely
presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for the Auburn industrial
Development Authority and the Auburn Housing Authority, are based on the reports of other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain’
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
inciudes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as

well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for cur opinions,

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Auburn, New York as of Sune 30, 2012, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America.




In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 21, 2013, on
our consideration of the City of Auburn, New York’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internai control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standaords and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and anralysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 12 and 57 through 60 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Sosoermons Bt loeaines COA ¢

Syracuse, New York
February 21, 2013
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CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Auburn’s financial performance provides an overview of the City’s
financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Please read it in conjunction with the City's financial
statements, which begin on page 13.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

> The governmental assets of the City exceeded its Habilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$66,514,475 (net assets). Of this amount, $15,970,557 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

> The City's net assets decreased by $2,628,497 or 3.8 percent.

» During the year, the City had expenses that were $2,628,497 greater than the $47,840,167 generated in
revenues for governmental programs.

» The General fund recorded a decrease of $1,653,979 in 2012 and had a fund balance at the end of the
year of $7,228,091.

> Overall, the City's bond and bond anticipation note (BAN} obligations decreased by $8,094,495 or 12.2
percent during the current fiscal year.

» The resources available for appropriation in the General fund were $1,736,761 less than budgeted ang
the expenditures were $1,631,566 favorable when compared to budget. Expenditures were favorable
compared to the budget primarily due to employee benefits being less than budgeted {health insurance).
In addition, there were vacancies in several positions for a portion of the year.

Using this Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of basic financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities {on pages 13 through 15) provide information about the City as a whole and present a
fonger-term view of the City’s finances. Fund financial statements begin on page 16. For Governmental Activities,
these statements tell how these services were financed in the short term, as well as what remains for future
spending. Fund financial statements also report the City’s operations in more detail than the Government-wide
statements by providing information about the City’s most significant funds. The remaining statement provides
financial information about activities for which the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those
outside the government. Following these statements are notes that provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements,

In addition to the basic financial statements, the annual report contains budgetary comparison information for
the General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds.



CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Reporting the City as a Whole

Our analysis of the City as a whole begins on page 13, with the Government-wide statements. The Statement of
Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in
a way that helps answer the guestion of whether the City, as a whole, is better off or worse off as a result of the
year's activities. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is
similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. Al of the current year's revenues and expenses
are taken into account regardless of when the cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City's net assets and changes in them. One can think of the City’s net assets, the
difference between assets and liabilities, as one way to measure the City’s financial health, or financial position.
QOver time, increases or decreases in the City's net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is
improving or deteriorating. One will need to consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the
City’s property tax base and the condition of the City’s streets, to assess the overall health of the City.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the City is separated into three kinds of
activities:

Governmental Activities: Most of the City's services are reported in this category, including public safety,
recreation, economic assistance, transportation, and general administration. Property and sales taxes, and
state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

Business-type Activities: The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of certain
services it provides, The City’s solid waste and power utility operations are reported here.

Component units: The City includes the Auburn Industrial Development Authority (AIDA) and the Auburn
Housing Authority as component units. The Auburn Industrial Development Authority {AIDA) is a public
benefit corporation, established to provide financial and other incentives to promote business and provide
jobs in the City of Auburn. Copies of the AIDA’s financial statements can be obtained by writing to the City of
Auburn Comptroller’s Office, Auburn, New York 13021. The Auburn Housing Authority is a not-for-profit,
exempt organization which includes programs related to public and subsidized housing. Copies of the Auburn
Housing Authority’s financial statements can be obtained by writing to the Auburn Housing Authority, Auburn,
New York 13021,

Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

Analysis of the City’s Major Funds begins on page 16. The fund financial statements provide detaited information
about the most significant funds - not the City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State
law. However, management establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular
purposes or to show it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes and grants. The City’s two kinds of
funds, Governmental and Proprietary, use different accounting approaches.



CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2012

Governmental Funds: Most of the City's services are reported in the Governmental Funds, which focus on how
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year end that are available for spending. These
funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all
other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The Governmental Fund statements provide a
detailed short-term view of the City’s general governmental operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental Fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be
spent in the near future to finance the City's programs. The relaticnship {or differences) between Governmental
Activities {reported in the Government-wide statements) and governmental funds is explained in a reconciiiation
following the fund financial statements,

Proprietary Funds: When the City charges customers for the services it provides - whether to outside customers
or to other units of the City - these services are generally reported in Proprietary Funds. Proprietary Funds are
reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities. The City's Enterprise Funds {a component of Proprietary Funds) are the same as the Business-type
Activities we report in the Government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such
as cash flows, for Proprietary Funds,

The City as Trustee: The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for other assets that are held on behalf of others. All of
the City’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate Statement of Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds on page 23. We
exclude these activities from the City’s other financial statements because the City cannot use these asseis to
finance its operations. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in this fund are used for their
intended purposes.

THE CITY AS AWHOLE

The City’'s combined net assets for fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 decreased from $69,519,302 {0 565,890,805, in
comparison to last year when net assets decreased by $3,479,853. By far, the largest portion of the City’s net
assets (74.8 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets {e.g. land, buildings, machinery and equipment and
infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided by other sources, as the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liguidate these liabilities,

An additional portion (3.2 percent) of the City’s net assets represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used and are reported as restricted net assets. The remaining category of total
net assets, unrestricted net assets, of $14,730,439, may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations
and services to creditors and citizens.



CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Our analysis below focuses on the net assets {Figure 1), and changes in net assets (Figure 2}, of the City’s
Governmental and Business-type Activities.

Figure 1
Net Assets
(in thousands)
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Tatal Primary Government Percent Change
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012-2011

Current assets S 27,205 S 25770 & 5,920 § 7,195 § 33,125 5§ 32,965 0%
Cther noncurrent assets 2,987 13,776 426 1,149 3,413 14,925 “TT%
Capitai assets, net 101,151 101,280 9,715 9,867 110,366 111,147 -1%

Total assets 131,343 140,826 15,561 18,211 146,804 159,037 -B%
Current liabilities 22,769 28,233 3,098 3,110 25,867 31,343 -17%
Noncurrent liabilities 42,060 44,618 12,087 13,557 54,147 58,175 ~7%

Total liabilities 64,829 72,851 15,185 16,657 80,014 89,518 -11%
Invested in capital assets, net of debt 48,753 44,217 288 {195) 50,041 44,032 14%
Restricted 791 6,313 1,328 - 2,119 6,213 -66%
Unrestricted 15,970 17,445 {1,240} 1,739 14,730 15,184 -23%

Total het assets S 66,514 & 67,975 5 376 5 1,544 % 66,890 S 69,5619 -4%

The net assets of the City’s Governmental Activities decreased by 2.2 percent or $1,460,692. Unrestricted net
assets, the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints, decreased
from a surplus of $17,445,483 at june 30, 2011 to $15,970,557 at june 30, 2012. This decrease in unrestricted
governmental net assets is primarily due to the reclassification of deferred revenue which was previously
reported as restricted net assets 1o a liability. ‘

The net assets of the Business-type Activities decreased by $1,167,805 during the year ending June 30, 2012. The
total non-capital portion of net assets of $1,739,631 at June 30, 2011 decreased to $88,492 at June 30, 2012,
primarily due to the operating loss in the Power Utility fund.

The City’s total revenues increased by 9.3 percent, or $4,432,173. The total cost of all programs and services
increased by 6.0 percent, or $3,114,795. The main factor leading to the increase in revenues was an increase in
fees. Qur analysis in Figure 2 separately considers the operations of Governmental and Business-type Activities.



CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Figure 2
Changes in Net Assets
{in thousands}

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government Percent
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 Change
PROGRAM REVENUES
Charges for services 3 16,816 S 12,830 5 4,288 S 4,421 S 21,104 $ 17,251 22%
Operating grants 1,i28 2,395 - - 1,128 2,395 -53%
Capital grants 769 1,868 - - 769 1,868 -59%
GENERAL REVENUES
Property taxes and taxitems 11,892 10,962 - - 11,882 10,962 9%
Nanproperty taxes 8,718 8,958 - - 8,719 8,958 -3%
State/Federal sources 5,194 5,513 - - 5,154 5,513 6%
Other 3,222 1,197 18 38 3,240 1,235 162%
Total revenues 47,840 43,723 4,306 4,459 52,146 48,182 8%
PROGRAM EXPENSES
General government 4,197 5,131 - - 4,187 5,131 -18%
Public safety 19,650 19,228 - - 19,650 18,228 2%
Transportation 3,397 4,709 - - 3,397 4,709 -28%
Econormic assistance and opp'y 55 55 - - 55 55 0%
Culture and recreation 2,018 2,165 - - 2,015 2,165 7%
Home and community services 13,149 11,934 - - 13,149 11,534 10%
Interest on long-term debt 1,841 1,630 - - 1,841 1,630 13%
Power Utility - - 2,081 1,859 2,081 1,858 12%
Solig Waste - - 3,893 3,229 3,893 3,225 21%
OTHER EXPENSES
Impairment loss - - - 1,721 - 1,721 ~100%
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 1,241 - - - 1,242 - -100%
Change in allocation 3,256 - - - 3,256 - -100%
Total expenses 48,801 44,852 5,974 5,809 54,775 51,661 6%
Excess before transfers {g61) (1,129} {1,668) {2,350} {2,629) {2,479 ~24%
Transfers/capital contributions {500} {466} 500 466 - - 0%
Increase {decrease] in net assets s (1,461 § {1,585) S (1,168) S {1,884} & (2,629} & {3,479) -24%

Governmental Activities

Revenues for the City’s Governmental Activities increased $4,583,656, or 10.6 percent, while total expenses
increased $3,948,946, or 8.8 percent.

The City has increased its property tax rate to 11.71 in 2011-2012 versus 11.22 in 2010-2011. The City’s tax jevy,
supported by an increase in taxable assessed valuation, increased to $11,462,426 in 2011-2012. These amounts

are included within the property taxes and tax items lines, which indicate an overall 5.4 percent rate increase
from 2011 to 2012.



CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3¢, 2012

Figure 3
Revenue by Source ~ Governmental Activities

Charges for Services s 16,816 35%
Operating Granis 1,128 2%
Capital Grants 769 2%
Property Taxes : 11,992 25%
Sales, Gross Receipts and Franchise Taxes 8,719 18%
State/Federal Sources 5,194 11%
Other _ 3,222 7%

S 47,840 100%

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $48,800,859. However, as shown in the Statement of
Activities, the amount that our taxpavers ultimately financed for these activities through City property and
payments in lieu of taxes was $11,992,322, because some of the cost was paid by those who directly benefited
from the programs which was 516,816,035, or by other governments and organizations that subsidized certain
programs with grants and contributions which totaled $1,897,134. Overall, the City’s governmental program
revenues, including fees for services and grants, were $18,713,169. The City paid for the remaining “public
benefit” portion of governmental activities with $29,126,998 in taxes and other revenues, such as interest and
general entitlements.

The total cost less revenues generated by activities, or the net cost, for each of the City's largest programs is
presented on the next page. The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the City’s taxpayers by
each of these functions.



CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Figure 4
Net Program Cost — Governmental Activities
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Business-Type Activities

Operating revenues of the City’'s Business-type Activities {see Figure 2) decreased by 3.0 percent, or 133,058, in
2012 compared to cperating expenses, which increased by 17.2 percent, or $839,885. The main increase in
expenses was in contractual services in both funds. Revenues decreased due to the hydro-electric plant
decreasing output.

The City's Funds

As the City completed the year, its Governmental Funds, as presented in the balance sheets on page 16, reported
a combined fund balance of $10,929,748, which is lower than last year’s total of $19,377,714. Figure 5 and figure
6 show the changes in fund balances for the year for the City's major funds. Of the $10,929,748, $4,523,248 is
unassigned and available for spending at the City's discretion. The remaining nonspendable, restricted,
committed and assigned fund balances are segregated to indicate that it is not available for new spending
because it has alfready been committed to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior period and a
variety of other restricted purposes.



CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Figure 5
Major Governmental Funds
Fund Balance at Year Ended
{in thousands}

Governmental Funds Percent Change

2012 2011 2012-2011
General Fund 5 7,228 S 8,882 -19%
Sewer Fund 582 3,227 -82%
Special Grant Fund 2,577 5,884 -56%
Capital Projects Fund (667) 177 -477%
Other Goveranmental Funds 1,208 1,207 0%
Totals 5 10,929 § 15,377 -44%

Figure 6

Major Enterprise Funds
Net Assets at Year Ended
{in thousands)

Total Enterprise Funds Percent Change

2012 2011 2012-2011
Power Utility Fund g (760) & 176 -532%
Solid Waste Fund 1,136 1,368 -17%
Totals 5 376 S 1,544 -76%

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the City Council, as well as the management of the City, revised the City budget
several iimes. These budget amendments consisted of budget transfers hetween functions, which do not
increase the overall budget, as well as {decreases) increases in estimated revenues and appropriations as follows:
General Fund — {595,914) in revenues and $317,207 in expenses.

Even with these adjustments, revenues and the actual charges to appropriations {expenditures) were helow the
final budget amounts, with significant savings in employee benefits.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2012, the City had $110,366,243, net of accumulated depreciation, invested in a broad range of capital
assets, including buildings, machinery and equipment, streets and bridges. This amount represents a net

decrease (including additions and deductions) of 0.4 percent or $481,200 over last year's capital assets, net of
accumutated depreciation.

-10-



CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Figure 7
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
{in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government Percent Change
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012-2011

iand s 4,253 § 4253 $ 420 5 420 % 4,673 § 4,673 0%
Construction in progress 5,786 6,326 - - 5,786 5,326 -9%
Buildings and improvements 25,211 26,062 6,144 5,841 31,385 23,003 -5%
Equipment 12,363 13,103 2,388 2,244 14,751 15,347 -4%
infrastructure 53,538 51,237 262 262 53,800 51,459 4%
Totals S 101,151 $ 100,981 $ 9,214 S 9,867 $ 110,365 & 110,848 0%

At year-end, the City had entered into contracts with various vendors for total commitments outstanding of
$431,482, of which $358,202 was committed for transportation projects. More detailed information can be found
in Note 18 to the financial statements regarding these commitments.

Bebt and Long-term Liabilities

Debt decreased by $6,801,766 and brought the total debt to $74,988,455 as of June 30, 2012, as shown in Figure
8. Of this amount, $30,960,996 is subject to the constitutional debt limit and represented 48.6% of the City's
statutory debt limit. Other long-term Habilities consist of amounts due to employee retirement systems,
compensated absences, judgments and claims payable, self-insurance liabilities, and landfill post-closure costs.
The most significant change in these fong-term liabilities was a decrease of $5,345,034 in serial bonds payable.
More detailed information about long-term debt activity can be found in Note 11 in the notes to the financial
statements.
Figure 8
Major Qutstanding Liabilities at Year Ended
{in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government Percent Change
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012-2011

Serial Bonds 3 40,533 § 44,592 S 8,172 5 9,458 § 48,705 % 54,051 ~30%
BANs 8,540 11,270 1,181 1,200 8721 12,470 -22%
tandfill closure and postciosure - - 5,512 5,148 5,512 5,148 7%
Notes payable 849 979 - - 843 979 -13%
Lease obligations 879 902 - - 579 502 -25%
Other long-term liabilities §,279 8,241 - - 9,279 8,241 13%
Totals 3 59,880 S 65,984 $ 14,865 3 15,807 S 74,745 S 81,751 -9%

More detailed information about the City’s liabilities is presented in Note 11 to the financial statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The amount available for appropriation in the 2012-2013 General Fund budget is $36,603,225, an increase of 7.4
percent over the adopted fune 30, 2012, budget of $34,107,775.

-11-



CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Contacting the City’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have
questions about the report or need any additional financial information, contact the City Comptrolier at 24 South
Street, Auburnp, NY.

-12-
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CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK
Statemant of Net Assets
lune 36, 2012

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted
Cash and cash squivalents, restricted
Invesiments
Investments, restricted
Taxes receivable, net
Internal balances
Due from state and federal governments
Due from other governments
Other receivables, net
Loans receivable, current
Prepald expenses
Property leases, current
Total current assets

Moncurrent assets:
Loans receivable, long-term
Property leases, long-term
Intangible assets, net
Capital assets, non-depreciable
Depreciable capital assets, net
Total noncusrent assets

Total assets

Primary Government

Component Units

Auburn Industrial Auburn
Governmental Business-type Deveiopment Housing
Activities Activities Totat Authority Authority

3 11,618,798 $ 5,971,313 S 17,589,611 S 126964  § 1,609,010
5,852,433 553,315 5,505,748 - 202,837
8,159 - 8,155 - 764,491
9,306 - 9,305 - 459,822
2,746,646 - 2,746,646 - -
927214 {927,214} - - -
259,121 - 259,121 - -
1,987,508 - 1,587,508 - -
3,400,488 322,938 3,723,416 184,254 18,378
296,033 - 296,033 - -
- - - - 141,688
- - - 203,881 -
27,205,206 5,920,352 33,125,558 515,089 3,196,226
2,587,264 - 2,987,264 - -
- - - 3,335,298 -
- 425,878 425,878 - -
10,038,910 420,187 10,459,097 273,694 -
91,112,473 8,794,673 99,907,146 - 7,497,308
104,138,647 9,640,738 113,779,385 3,608,552 7,497,308
3 131,343,853 $ 15,561,080 $ 145,904,943 S 4,224 091 5 10,693,534

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

<13~



CITY OF AUBURMN, NEW YORK
Statement of Net Assets {continued)
June 30, 2012

Primary Government Component Units

Auburn Industrial Auburn
Governmental Business-type Development Hausing
Activities Activities Taotal Authority Huthority
LIABILITIES
Current Habilities:
Accounts payable 1,396,722 s 218,138 S 1,614,860 5 281,754 s 20,853
Accrued labilities 349,213 45,633 394,846 - 113,821
Due to other governments 1,734,793 - 1,734,793 - -
Due to employees’ retirernent system 936,321 27,229 963,550 - -
Band anticipation notes payabie §,539,539 3,180,700 9,720,239 - -
Accrued interest payable 244254 28,731 273,025 9,650 -
Unearned revenue 288,903 - 288,903 - 31,127
Current portion of iong-term liabilides:
Lease obligations payable 178,804 - 178,804 - -
Bonds payable 3,689,668 1,137,800 4827468 203,881 107,777
Note payable 140,000 - 140,000 - -
Gther Hiabilities - - - - -
Employees' retirement system note payable 125,132 - 125,132 - -
Compensated absences 1,623,811 - 1,623,811 - 7,285
Gther postemployment benefits 2,808,765 - 2,808,765 - -
Self insurance Hability 28,728 - 28,729 - -
Claims and Jjudgments payable 683,633 - 683,633 - -
Landfill post closure fability - 460,000 460,000 - B
Total current fiabilities 22,769,327 3,098,231 25,867,558 495,325 280,963
Long-term fiabiities:
Lease cbligation payable 500,632 500,632 - -
Bonds payable 36,843,877 7,034,400 43,878,277 3,335,298 974,960
Note payables 709,000 - 709,000 125,320 -
Employees’ retirement system note payable 268,347 - 269,347 - -
Cormpensated absences - - ~ - 65,557
Other postemployment benefits 3,053,427 - 3,053,427 - 118,734
Self insurance liability 683,768 - 683,768 - -
Landfilt post closure fiability - 5,052,129 5,052,129 - -
Total long-term labilities 42,060,051 12,086,529 54,145,580 3,460,618 1,166,251
Total Hiabilities £4,829,378 15,184,760 80,014,138 3,955,943 1,441,214
MNET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt 49,752,520 287,838 50,040,358 148,374 6,414,571
Restrictad 791,358 1,328,616 2,120,008 - 1,156,161
{Unrestricted 15,970,557 11,240,118} 14,730,439 119,774 1,681 588
Total net assets 66,514,475 376,330 66,850,805 268,148 9,252,320
Total liabilities and net assets 131,343,853 S 15,561,080 $ 146,904,943 $ 4,224,091 $ 10,693,534

-14-

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK

Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Balances

To The Statements of Net Assets
lune 30, 2012

Total governmental fund balances

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, used in governmental
activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the

funds.

Capital asseis
Accumulated depreciation

$170,533,304
(69,381,921)

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period

expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.

Certain accrued expenses reported in the Statement of Net Assets do not

require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are
reported as liabilities in the funds.

Accrued interest payable

Amounts due to employees’ retirement systems

Compensated absences

Self insurance liability

Other postemployment benefits

Claims and judgments

not

$  (244,294)
(394,479)
(1,623,811)
{713,497)
(5,862,192}
(683,633)

{ong term liabilities, including bonds payable, lease obligations payable and a
note payable, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,

are not reported in the funds.
Bonds payable
Leases payable
Note payable

Met assets of governmental activities

$ {40,533,545)
(679,436)
{849,000}

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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S 10,929,748

101,151,383

6,017,231

(9,521,906}

(42,061,981)

S 66,514,475
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CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2012

Net change in fund balances of governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, however, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives. Capital outlays were greater than depreciation in the
current period.

Capital outlay
Depreciation

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Debt related proceeds provide current financial resources to Governmental
funds , but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net
Assets. Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the Governmental
Funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of
Net Assets. This is the amount by which repayment of debt principal was
more than the issuance of new debt.

Changes in certain liabilities reflected in the Statement of Activities do not
affect current financial resources and, therefore, are not reflected in the
Governmental Funds,

Accrued interest payable

Amounts due to the employee retirement systems

Compensated absences

Other postemployment benefits

Self insurance labiliy

Claims and judgments

In the Statement of Activities, only the gain or loss on the sale of capital
assets is reported, whereas, in the Governmental Funds, the proceeds from
the sale of capital assets increase financial resources. The net effect is a gain
on sale of capital assets on the Government Wide Statement of Activities vs.
proceeds from the sale of capital assets on the Governmental Fund
Ststements. The difference between the proceeds and the gain is the net
book value.
Net book value of capital asset disposals and adjustments

Change in net assets of governmental activities

$

S

5,945,592

(4,533,858)

40,817
119,173
312,915

(702,243)
(686,282)

(79,808)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statement
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{8,447,966)

1,411,734

3,401,068

4,410,415

{995,428)

{1,240,515)

{1,460,692}




CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2012

Business-type Activities

Enterprise Funds

Power Utility Solid Waste
Fund Fund Total
REVENUES
Charges for services S 531,611 S 3,602,701 S 4,134,312
Other operating revenus 113,774 40,236 154,010
Total operating revenues 645,385 3,642,937 4,288,322
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages - 497,594 497,504
Contractual services 1,781,170 2,030,742 3,811,912
Employee benefits - 262,995 262,985
Depreciation and amortization 259,799 888,944 1,148,743
Total operating expenses 2,040,969 3,680,275 5,721,244
Loss from operations {1,395,584) {37,338) (1,432,922}
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest revenue 35 18,239 18,274
Interest expense {40,714) (212,443} {253,157}
Total non-operating expenses {40,679} {194,204) {234,883}
Net loss before transfers {1,436,263) {231,542} {1,667,805)
Interfund transfers in 500,000 - 500,000
Net decrease in net assets {936,263) {231,542} {1,167,805)
Net asseis - beginning of year 176,115 1,368,020 1,544,135
Net assets - end of year S (760,148} & 1,136,478 S 376,330

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
For the year ended june 30, 2012

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Power Utility
Fund Solid Waste Fund Total
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from providing services S 554,939 s 3,692,829 S 4,247,768

Cash received from other funds and other sources 113,774 40,236 154,010

Cash payments - employees - (557,440) (557,440)

Cash payments - employee benefits - {257,991} {257,991)

Cash payments - suppliers {814,495} (1,662,720} (2,477,215}
Net cash provided by {used in} operating activities {145,782) 1,254,914 1,109,132

Cash flows from non-capital and financing activities
Transfers from {to} other funds 255,705 (641,808) {386,103}
Cash Tlows from capital and reiated financing activities

Payments on bond anticipation notes {1,200,000) - (1,200,000)

Proceeds from bond anticipation notes 1,180,700 - 1,180,700

Payrents on bonds {49,800) {1,236,300) (1,286,700)

Interest expense (40,858) {213,482 {254,340}

Purchase of capital assets - {326,077) {326,077}
Net cash used in capital and refated financing activities : (108,558} {1,776,459) (1,886,417}

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest income 35 18,239 18,274
Net decrease in cash and cash eguivalents - {1,145,114) {1,145,114)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year - 7,669,742 7,669,742
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year S - 3 6,524,628 S 6,524,628

Recongiliation of income from operations to net

cash provided by (used in} operating activities:

Loss fram operations S (1,395,584} ) (37,338) $ {1,432,527}
Depreciation and amortization 253,799 888,544 1,148,743
Transfers in {500,000 - {500,000}
Change in assets and liabilities;

Accounts receivable 23,328 90,128 113,456
Accounts payable 37,740 3,750 47,430
Checks written in excess of cash balance 528,935 - 928,935
Accrued liabilities - (59,846) (59,846}
Due to empioyees’ retirement system - 5,004 5,004
Landfill post closure liability - 364,272 364,272
Dug from other funds not attributable to operations 500,000 - 500,000
MNet cash provided by {used in} operating activities S {145,782) S 1,254,914 S 1,109,132
Reconciliation of total cash and cash equivalents

Current assets - unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 5 - s 5,971,313 S 5,871,313

Non-current assets - restricted cash and cash equivalents - 553,315 553,315
Total cash and cash equivalents s - 5 6,524,628 S 6,524,628

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK
Statement of Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted S 75,923
LIABILITIES

Total liabilities S 75,923

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK
Notes to the Financlal Statements

Nete 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of Auburn, New York {the “City”} have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America (GAAP} as applied to governmental units.
The City's reporting entity applies ail relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB} is the accepted standard setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

Enterprise Funds apply Financial Accounting Standards Board {FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principies
Board (APB} opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or
contradict GASB pronauncements, in which case, GASB prevajls.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The City of Auburn, New York, located in Cayuga County was incerporated and its original charter enacted
luly 15, 1914.  An amended charter was enacted and became effective January 1, 1940. The City of

Auburn, New York is governed by its charter, other general laws of the State of New York (“the State”),
and various local laws.

The governing body of the City consists of a Mayor and City Counciiors who make up the Common
Council. The City Manager is the chief executive officer, who provides for the enforcement of all general
and local laws, and ruies and regulations of the Council. The Comptroller is the chief fiscal officer and is
responsible for the receiving, disbursing and holding of all City monies and the books of account of the
City. In addition, the chief fiscal officer is responsible for the auditing and approval of payment of all
lawful claims against the City.

The following basic services are provided by the City: public safety {police and fire}, highways and streets,
solid waste management, health, culture-recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, utilities
and general administration.

All governmental activities and functions performed for the City of Auburn, New York are its direct
responsibility. The basic financial statements include all funds of the primary government, which is the
City, organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and other organizational
entities determined to be included in the City’s reporting entity in accordance with GASB Statement No.
14, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39.

1. Related Organizations
Related organizations include the Auburn Local Development Corporation.

The purpose of the Auburn Local Development Corporation is to plan, promote, coordinate and

execute programs in the City of Auburn, New York in order to improve the guality of life for its
residents,
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CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK
Motes to the Financial Statements

A. Financial Reporting Entity {continued)
1. Related Organizations {continued)
This agency is excluded from the City's reporting entity for the foliowing reasons:

e Employment and personnel are controlled by its separate agency;
e The City has no significant influence in operations;
¢ The City has no budgetary authority over this agency;
The separate agency maintains control over their individual fiscal management;
e The agency does not provide a financial benefit or a financial burden to the City.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the City and its two component units,
legally separate organizations for which the City is financially accountable. The decision to include a
potential component unit in the City's reporting entity is based on several criteria including legal
standing, fiscal dependency and financial accountability. Based on the application of thesa criteria,
the following two authorities have been included as discretely presented component units:

{1) Auburn Industrial Development Authority

The Auburn Industrial Development Authority {the “AIDA") is a public benefit corporation,
established in 1969 by the state legislature to provide financial and other incentives to
promote business and provide jobs in the City. The chairman of AIDA is appointed by the
mavyor of the City and is subject to confirmation by the City council. The City is not liable for
AIDA’s bonds or notes. The City is financially accountable for AIDA and provides
administrative support at no cost to AIDA. AIDA is considered a business-type activity. The
accounts for this component unit represent activity and balances for the fiscal yvear ended
December 31, 2011. Copies of AIDA’s financial statements can be obtained by writing to the
City of Auburn Comptroller's Office, Auburn NY 13021,

AIDA, in accordance with its corporate purpose, has issued bonds to promote and develop
various businesses within the City. AIDA holds legal title to the properties, under which such

- bonds were issued in order for businesses to acquire or renovate facilities. These bonds
represent non-recourse debt of AIDA. AIDA’s primary function is to arrange financing
between borrowing companies and bondholders. AIDA receives administration fees from the
borrowing companies for this service.

AIDA leases facilities to businesses under capital lease arrangements since the lessee can
purchase the facility at the end of the lease for a nominal amount. Each asset, property
leases, is offset by a liability, bonds payable as shown on the statement of net assets. AIDA
acts as an intermediary between the principal payments from the lessee and the principal
payments on the bonds. AIDA does not receive or pay these monies directly.
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A. Financial Reporting Entity (continued)
1. Related Organizations (continued)
{2} Auburn Housing Authority

The Auburn Housing Authority {the “Authority”) was created in 1957, pursuant to Section 436
of Article Xl of the Public Housing Law of the State of New York. lts general purpose is to
provide housing for low income residents of the City, including the development and
operation of low rent public housing projects in the City. Members of the Authority are
appointed by the City manager.

The City aids in the development and operation of the Authority’s housing projects by
granting subsidies and other aid.

The Authority is considered a business-type activity. The accounis for this component unit
represent activity and balances for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, Copies of the
Authority’s financiai statements can be obtained by writing to the Auburn Housing Authority,
Auburn, NY 13021.

B. Basic Financial Statements

The City's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole} and
fund financial statements {reporting the City's major funds). Both the government-wide and fund
financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type. The City's
general governmental support, public safety, transportation, culture and recreation, and home and
community services are classified as governmental activities, while services relating to the power utility
operations and the solid waste facility are classified as business-type activities.

i. Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements include a statement of net assets and a statement of activities.
These statements display information about the City and its component units. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall government, except fiduciary activities. Eliminations have
been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish
between the governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally
are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.
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B. Basic Financial Statements {continued)

1. Government-wide Statements {continued)

2.

In the government-wide statement of net assets, both the governmental and business-type activities
columns are presented on a consolidated basis by column and are reportad on a full accrual,
economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term
debt and obligations. The City's net assets are reported in three parts - invested in capital assets, net
of related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets. The City first utilizes restricted
resources to finance gualifying activities.

The Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost for each of the City's functions or
programs. Gross expenses are direct expenses, including depreciation, that are specifically associated
with a service, program or department and are, therefore, clearly identifiable to a particular function.
These expenses are offset by program revenues - charges paid by the recipients of the goods or
services offered by the programs, grants, and contributions - that are restricted to meeting the
program or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues which are not classified as
program revenues are presented as general revenues of the City, with certain limited exceptions.
The net cost represents the extent to which each function or program is self-financing or draws from
the general revenues of the City.

The City does not allocate indirect costs. Indirect costs are reported in the function entitled "general
government support.”

Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the City are reported in individual governmental funds in the fund
financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of seif-balancing
accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures
or expenses. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial
management by segregating transactions related o ceriain government functions or activities.
Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions are financed. The
acquisition, use, and balances of expendable financial resources, and the related liabilizies are
accounted for through governmental funds. The measurement focus of the governmental funds is
based upon determination of financial position and changes in financial position under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, The following are the City’s governmental funds:

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund — this fund is the principal operating fund and includes ali operations not
required to be recorded in other funds.

Special Revenue Funds — these funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific

revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The
following two special revenue funds are City funds:
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B. Basic Financial Statements (continued)

1. Fund Financial Statements {continued}

(1) Sewer Fund — this fund was established by law to account for revenues derived from
charges for sewer usage and the application of such revenuss toward related
operating expenses and debt retirement.

{2} Special Grant Fund — this fund is used to account for Community Development Block
Grants and other funding used for community development.

Capitai Projects Funds - these funds are used to account for financial resources to be
used for the acquisition, construction, or renovation of major capital facilities refated to
general government, public safety, culture and recreation, and home and community,

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Water Fund -~ this fund was established by law to account for revenues derived from
charges for water consumption and the application of such revenues toward related
operating expenses and debt retirement.

Permanent Fund — this fund is used to account for assets donated for cemetery
maintenance.

Enterprise Funds — these funds are used to account for electric and landfill operations. The
Power Utility Fund is used to account for the activities of a hydro-electric facility and an electric
generation facility powered by methane gas, these generate electricity that is used within the City
and sold to local utilities. The Solid Waste Fund is used to account for disposal activities at the
City’s solid waste management facility. This includes administration, recycling, and disposal of
waste collected by City crews.

Fiduciary Fund Types — these funds are used to account for assets held by the City either in a trust
or through a custodial capacity.

Agency Fund — this fund is used to account for money and/or property received and held in the
capacity of trustee, or custodian or agent, such as employee salary wage withholdings for the
remittance of employee group insurance premiums.

€. Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures and the related assets and liabilities are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the basic financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to
the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus. Measurement focus is the
determination of what is measured, i.e. expenditures or expenses.

~28 -



CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK
MNotes to the Financial Statements

€. Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus (continued)

L.

1. Accrual Basis

The government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund financial statements are
presented on an “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Accordingly all of the City's assets and Habilities, including capital assets, as well as infrastructure
assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets. The
Statement of Activities presents changes in net assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Modified Accrual Basis

The governmental fund financial statements are prepared using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when measurable and
available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafier to he
used to pay liabilities of the current period.  Material revenues that are accrued include real
property taxes, staie and federal aid, sales tax, and cerfain user charges.

The City considers property tax receivables collected within 60 days after year-end to be available
and recognizes them as revenues of the current year. All other revenues that are deemed
collectible within one year after year end are recognized as revenues in the current year. If
expenditures are the prime factor for determining eligibility, revenues from federal and state
grants are accrued when the expenditure is made,

Expenditures are recorded when incurred. The cost of capital assets is recognized as an
expenditure when received. Exceptions to this general rule are principal and interest on
indebtedness that are not recognized as an expenditure until due, and compensated absences,
such as vacation and sick leave, which vests or accumulates and are charged as an expenditure
when paid.

3. Interfund Activity

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. An exception to this general rule is the chargeback of services, such as
utifities, vehicle maintenance, and central costs. Elimination of these charges would distort the
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Revenues
Substantiaily all governmental fund revenues are accrued.

1. Real Property Taxes

The authority for levying taxes for the support of the City government is derived from Article IV of
the City Charter and various provisions of the Real Property Tax Law. For tax purposes, each
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D. Revenues (continued)
1. Real Property Taxes (continued}

parcel of real property is listed by owner and/or number and value is established by the assessor.
Amounts to be raised by tax are balancing factors calculated from the annual budgets. Tax rates
are established by the ratio of real property value taxes to be raised, and taxes are levied by the
Common Council on or before July 1st. Taxes become a lien on the levy date.

Property tax revenues are recognized as revenues in the year they are levied and collected, as
long as they are collected within 60 days subsequent to year end. Property taxes not collected

within 60 days subsequent to year end are reported as deferred revenue in the fund financial
statements. '

City taxes are payable to the City Treasurer and are payable in two installments due on or before
July 31 and January 31. Interest accrues on all overdue taxes but is not recognized until collected.

In December, the School District returns to the City all unpaid School taxes levied in the City in
September. The City then assumes responsibility for their collection and enforcement. The City
owed the School District $1,139,023 at june 30, 2012. In May, the County returns to the City all
unpaid County taxes levied in the City in February. The City then assumes responsibility for their
coltection and enforcement. The City owed the County $591,657 at June 30, 2012.

In june of each year, unpaid City, School, County, and Library taxes are enforced through a tax
sale held pursuant to Article IV of the Charter.

2. Sales Taxes

The State Department of Taxation and Finance is responsible for the administration and collection
of sales tax proceeds. The State Comptroller's Office is responsible for processing payments of
sales tax proceeds to the City. The State makes estimated monthly payments to the City based on
prior year sales tax return information. Each quarter, the State will adjust its payment to reflect
actual sales taxes collected for the quarter.

In New York State, counties and cities are authorized to levy a local sales tax, which is imposed in
addition to the State sales tax of 4%. The City’s sales tax levy became effective in March 1996. The
City has opted to pre-empt the County in its collection of sales tax. The County’s tax rate is 4%,
while the City pre-empts the County at a 2% sales tax rate. As such, the City does not share with
the County any of the 2% of sales taxes collected within the City and the County does not share
any sales taxes collected outside the City.
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D. Revenues {continued)

3. State Sources

a}

b}

Aid and Incentives for Municipalities {AIM) Program

The AIM program provides direct, unrestricted aid to cities, towns and villages
throughout the State. All municipalities receiving AIM had payments reduced by an
addition 1.1% in fiscal 2012 to make up for the State loss in Federal Medical
Assistance Percentages funding. The State will pay the City throughout the year,
normally in June, December, and March. For the period April 1, 2011 through March
31, 2012 (the State’s fiscal year), the City received funding of $4,982,093.

Since the City is a distressed municipality that received over $100,000 in additional
aid, the City is required to use the AIM funding to: {i) minimize or reduce the real
property tax burden; (i) invest in economic development or infrastructure to achieve
economic revitalization and generate real property tax base growth; or (iii} support
investments in technology or other reengineering initiatives that permanently
minimize or reduce operating expenses.

The City Is required to submit a comprehensive fiscal performance plan to the
Director of Budget and the Office of State Comptroller within 60 days of the City’s
adopted budget and is subject to compliance reviews of the accountability
requirements by the State Comptroller who can withhold AIM for noncompliance
with such accountability requirements. The City believes it is in compliance with all
such reguirements.

State Grants

The City receives grants from the State and recognizes receivables and revenue when
the applicable eligibility requirements including time reguirements are met, State
grants are normally on a reimbursement basis for which the City has to first incur
allowable costs under the applicable program to be reimbursed from the State
through the grant. Grant monies received in advance of meeting the eligibility
requirements are recorded as deferred revenue by the City until such eligibility
requirements are met. State grants are subject to the State single audit act

requirements and are subject to audit by the State for compliance with the grant
requirements.

4, Federal Sources

The City receives grants from the federal government, either through direct reimbursement or as
a pass-through entity (such as the State} and recognizes receivables and revenue when the
applicable eligibility requirements including time requirements are met. Federal grants are
normally on a reimbursement basis for which the City has to first incur allowable costs under the
applicable program to be reimbursed through the grant. Grant monies received in advance of
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D. Revenues (continuéd)

€I

meeting the eligibility requirements are recorded as deferred revenue by the City until such
eligibility requirements are met. Federal grants are subject to the single audit act requirements
and are subject to audit by the appropriate federal agency for compliance with the grant
requirements.

5. Departmental income

The City's Sewer and Water Funds recognize revenues when earned. The City charges ressdents
and other users of the sewer and water systems a rate per cubic feet of consumption.

6. Enterprise Fund Revenues

The City’s two business-type activities, the Power Utility Fund and Solid Waste Fund recognize
revenues when earned. The City operates a hydro-electric and electric generation facility
powered by methane gas to produce electricity which is used within the City and soid to users
based on a rate per kWh. In addition, the City owns a landfili for which it charges residents and
commercial users’ fees for disposal of solid waste.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flow, cash equivalents are defined as short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less. The Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds, presented on page
22, uses the direct method of reporting cash flows.

Receivables

Receivables are stated net of the estimated allowance for uncollectible amounts. Amounts due from
state and federal governments represent amounts owed to the City to reimburse it for expenditures
incurred pursuant to state and federal grant programs. Other receivables represent amounts owed to the
City, which include sewer rents, water rents, and assessments. The City also reports rehabilitation loans
receivable, net of an aliowance for uncollectible amounts of approximately $559,000.

Investiments

Investments are stated at fair value.

. Capital Assets

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported
at fair market value as of the date received. Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that
significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and
maintenance is expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. Governmental capital assets purchased or acquired with an
original cost of at least $500 and having a useful life of greater than one year are capitalized.
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H. Capital Assets {continued)

The estimated useful lives for governmental capital assets are as follows:

Buildings 40 years
Improvements 20-50 years
Machinery and equipment 4-13 years
Infrastructure 12-40 years

Capital assets of business-type activities are depreciated over the following useful lives:

Buildings 20-50 years
Improvements 20-50 years
Machinery 5-20 years

Infrastructure 12-40 years

No interest on construction in progress has been capitalized.
. Intangible Assets

intangible assets subject to amortization include legal and engineering fees relating to the electric co-
generation facility further described in Note 18. Accumulated amortization as of June 30, 2012 amounted
to $411,439 and amortization expense amounted to $170,245.

I Insurance and Risk Management

The City maintains insurance coverage for most risk including, but not limited to, property damage and
personal injury liability. Judgments and claims are recorded when it is probable that an asset has been
impaired or a Hability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. No
settlements exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

K. Compensatory Absences

Full-time, permanent employees are granted vacation and sick leave benefits and earn compensatory
absences in varying amounts to specified maximums, depending on tenure with the City. Except in the
event of retirement or termination, an employee is paid for these benefits as used. These benefits are
budgeted annually as part of salary or overtime, and are accounted for on a pay-as-you-go basis.

in the event of retirement or termination, an employee is entitled to payment for accumulated vacation
and compensatory time not used. Generally, vacations must be taken in the calendar year following the
calendar year in which they were sarned.

In limited circumstances, vacation may be carried over to the next calendar year. An employee is only
entitled to payment of accumutated sick time if the reason for leaving the City's employment is due to a
continuing iliness or injury. The City accounts for all earned but unused time in the government-wide
statements under governmental activities.
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Other Postemployment Benefits

In addition to pension benefits described in Note 8, the City provides other postemployment benefits for
health insurance, dental insurance, and disability income to eligible retirees, terminated employees, and
their dependents. The benefits are provided in accordance with City ordinances, collective bargaining
agreements, the Consoclidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA) and New York State
General Municipal Law {GML Section 207(a)). The criterion to determine eligibility includes: years of
service, employee age, and disability due to line of duty.

The City funds the benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. Eligible employees are required to pay set premiums
for a portion of the cost, with the City subsidizing the remaining costs. During the year, premiums paid
{net of participant contributions) of approximately $2,125,000 were incurred for post-retirement health
care benefits for 231 participants currently eligible. An additional $27,000 was paid to an eligible, retired
firefighter under GML Section 207{a). These costs are reported as employee benefits in the funds.

. Equity Classifications

Government-wide Statements

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds,

mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by 1) external
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or 2) law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Assets - Consists of all other net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted” or
“invested in capital assets, net of related debt."

Fund Statements

In the fund statements there are five classifications of fund balance:

Non-spendable - Includes amounts that cannet be spent because they are either not in spendable form or
fegally or contractually required to he maintained intact. Non-spendable fund balance includes an
endowment in the non-major governmental funds of $9,292.

Restricted - includes amounts with constraints placed on the use of resources either externally imposed
by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments; or imposed by law

through ceonstitutional provisions or enabling legisiation. Al encumbrances of funds other than the
General fund are classified as restricted fund balance.
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M. Equity Classifications {continued)

Reserve for Encumbrances

This reserve represents the amount of outstanding encumbrances at the end of the fiscal year to be

potentially expended in the subsequent year. This reserve is accounted for in various major and non-
majer government fund types.

Restricted fund balances consist of the following as of June 30, 2012:
Equipment reserves:

Sewer fund s 773

Gther governmental funds 34,210
Reservas for encumbrances:

Special grant fund 45,980

Capital projects fund 710,337

Other governmental funds 98

$ 751,398

Solid waste fund:
Reserve for landfill expansion S 1,303,610
Eguipment reserve 25,000
$ 1,328,610

Committed - Includes amounts that can only be used for the specific purposes pursuant to constraints

imposed by formal aciion of the City's highest level of decision making authority, i.e., the Common
Council.

General Fund
Amounts committed in the General fund consist of internally established reserves to mitigate

uncertainties in expenditures. Committed funds were as follows at June 30, 2012:
General fund:

Other postemployment benefits reserve ) 600,000
Reserve for worker's compensation claims 400,000
Eguipment reserve 187,830
Reserve for Falcon Park 12,740

S 1,200,570

Assigned - includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but
are neither restricted nor committed. All encumbrances of the General fund are classified as assigned
fund balance in the General fund. Encumbrances reported in the General fund amounted to $126,871.
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M. Equity Classifications {continued)

Unassigned - Inctudes all other General fund net assets that do not meet the definition of the above four
classifications and are deemed to be available for general use by the City.

Order of Use of Fund Balance

The City’s policy is to apply expenditures against non-spendable fund balance, restricted fund balance,
committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and unassigned fund halance at the end of the fiscal year.
For all funds, non-spendable fund balances are determined first and then restricted fund balances for
specific purposes are determined. Any remaining fund balance amounts for funds other than the General
Fund are classified as restricted fund balance. In the general fund, committed fund balance is used next
and then assigned. The remaining amounts are reported as unassigned. Assignments of fund balance
cannot cause a negative unassigned fund balance.

N. Interfund Activity

interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported
as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation.
Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and
expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate
benefiting fund and reduces its refated cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are
treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental and proprietary funds are netted as part of the
reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

0. Restricted Resources

When an expense Is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are
available, it is the City’s policy to apply restricted funds before unrestricted funds, unless otherwise
prohibited by legal requirements. Certain assets are classified on the balance sheet as restricted because
their use is limited. The proceeds of bond and note sales can only be used for the stated purpose of the
borrowing. Property taxes collected for debt service payments are legally restricted for that
purpose. Community Development Block Grant Funds must be used only for approved programs.
Cemetery perpetual care funds cannot be expended. However, the interest earnings can be spent for
cemetery maintenance functions. 1t is the City's policy to spend the interest earnings each fiscal year.

P. Permanent Fund Endowment
The Permanent Fund consists of a gift from a donor with the stipulation that the principal amount be held
in perpetuity and investment earnings used for cemetery maintenance. The principal is invested in a time

deposit and earnings are expended for maintenance. There are no investment gains or losses.

In accordance with the City's policy and relevant laws of New York State, actual investment earnings have
been distributed during the year and the certificate has been renewed at the original principal amount.
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Q. Changes in Accounting Standards

GASB has issued Statement 57, OPEB Measurements, which enables certain agent employers to use the
alternative measurement method, a less compiex and potentially less expensive alternative to a full
actuarial valuation. The City has evaluated the statement and determined that it is not applicable.

GASB has issued Statement 60, Service Concession Arrangements. This Statement pertains to the transfer
of a publicly owned facility to a private organization to operate and maintain in exchange for significant
consideration. The City has evaluated the statement and will implement as of June 30, 2013 if, at that
time, it becomes applicable to the City.

GASB has issued Statement 61, The Financial Reporting Omnibus. This Statement pertains to the
determination of component units and the financial reporting entity, this Statement updates GASB 14.
The City has evaluated the statement and will implement as of June 30, 2013.

GASB has issued Statement 62, Codification of Pre-1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. This Statement
codifies ali applicabte pre-1989 literature. The City has evaluated the statement and will implement as of
June 30, 2013.

GASB has issued Statement 63, Reporting Deferred Quiflows, Deferred Inflows and Net Position. This
Statement modifies the reporting of the Statement of Net Assets to the Statement of Financial Position to
better represent assets versus deferred amounts. The City has evaluated the statement and will
implement as of june 20, 2013.

GASB has issued Statement 64, Applicotion of Hedge Accounting and Termination Provisions. This
Statement pertains to the maintenance of a hedging relationship and therefore hedge accounting when

an original contract has been terminated. The City has evaluated the statement and determined that it is
not applicable.

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments

The City’s investment policies are governed by State statutes. In addition, the City has its own written investment
policy. The State statutes and the City's investment policies as described below are promulgated to control the
credit risk of cash deposits and investments.

City monies must be deposited in FDIC {Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation) - insured commercial banks or
trust companies located within the State. The Comptroller is authorized to use demand accounts and certificates
of deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, repurchase
agreements, and obligations of New York State or its localities.

Coifateral {security) is required for demand and time deposits and certificates of deposit at 100 percent of all

deposits not covered by Federal Deposit insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations
of the United States and its agencies and obligations of the State and its municipalities and school districts.
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Note 2 - Deposits and Investments {continued)

The written investment policy requires that repurchase agreements be purchased from banks located within the
State and that underlying securities must be obligations of the Federal government. Underlying securities must
have a market value of at least 100 percent of the cost of the repurchase agreement.

Interest rate risk is the risk that in accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposures to
declines in fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio to less than six
months,

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may neot be returned to it.
While the City does not have a specific policy for custodial credit risk, the State statutes govern the City's
investment policies, as discussed previcusly in these notes. Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 40 directs that deposits be disclosed as exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository
insurance, and the deposits are either uncollateralized or collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution’s trust department or agent.

The City’s aggregate deposits of $25,013,778 are either insured through the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) or are collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution. The FDIC
insurance covers all deposit accounts, including checking and savings accounts up to $250,000 per official
custodian. The City’s deposits subject to FDIC insurance totals $500,000 while the remaining is uninsured but is
collateratized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the City's
name. The aggregate deposits for the discretely presented component unit, Auburn Industrial Development
Authority at December 31, 2011, of $436,073 and for the discretely presented component unit, Auburn Housing
Authority at March 31, 2012 of $2,829,467 are either insured or collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution.

Mote 3 - Restricted Cash
Restricted cash and cash equivalents, reported on the government-wide and fund financial statements, consists of

$5,756,114 of unspent debt proceeds to be used for the acquisition, construction, or renovation of capital assets
and $749,634 of cash and cash equivalents which is required coliateral for the City’s health insurance policy.
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Note 3 - Restricted Cash {continued)
As of June 30, 2012, restricted cash and cash equivalents consisted of:

Governmental activities

General government S 983,080
Public safety 573
Transporiation 388,672
Cuiture and recreation 2,462
Home and community services 4,077,246

Total governmental activities S 5,952 433

Business-type activities
Solid waste s 553,315

Auburn Housing Authority’s restricted cash and investments are comprised of savings accounts and US Treasury
Bills as follows:

Federal Low Section 8
Rent DHCR Housing Choice
HAP Reserve S - 5 -5 93,091
State Reserves - Investments - 458,822 -
Security Deposits 17,605 92,141 -
S 17,605 S 551,963 S 93,091

The Authority has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant
credit risk. These amounts are reported as restricted cash and cash equivalents and restricted investments on the
statement of net assets. ’

Note 4 - Investments

Investments are recorded at fair vaiue. The City's credit policy on investments is to generally invest in insured or
registered securities held by the City or its agent in the City’s name, therefore having minimal custodial credit risk.
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Note 4 — Investments {continued)

Investments of the discretely presented component unit, Auburn Housing Autherity, include investments in
United States Treasury Bills, Certificates of Deposit with an original maturity of over three months and its holding
with Housing Authority Risk Retention Group. Debt securities consist primarily of obligations of the US.
Government. The invesiments are categorized as uninsured and unregistered with securities held by the
counterparty in the entity’s name or heid by the counterparty’s trust department (if a bank} or agent, but not in
the entity’s name. These short term investments are recorded as unrestricted cash equivalents on the statement
of net assets.

A summary of investments as of March 31, 2012 follows:

Unrealized

Cost Gain {Loss) Market Value

Unrestricted
Certificates of deposit S 525,000 S (388) $ 524,612
Asset backed securities 215,891 1,687 217,678
Investment - housing authority risk retention group 22,201 - 22,201
763,192 1,299 764,491
Restricted - United States Treasury Bilis 458,750 72 458,822
Total investments S 1,222,942 S 1,371 S 1,224,313
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Note 5 - Other Receivables
Other receivables consist of the following as of June 30, 2012:

General fund:

Accounts receivable S 1,810,141

Allowance for accounts receivable (1,713,604)
Special revenue fund - sewer fund:

Sewer rents receivable 1,766,774

Accounts receivable 48,949
Capital projects fund:

Sidewalk assessments 685,985
Other governmental funds:

Water rents receivable 702,243

Tatal governmental funds S 3,400,488

Solid waste fund:

Accounts receivable 527,330
Allowance for uncollectibie receivables {204,392)
Total enterprise funds S 322,938

Note 6 - Property Taxes

At June 30, 2012, the total real properly tax receivable of 53,514,382 is offset by an allowance for uncollectible
taxes of $767,737. The remaining portion of taxes receivable is offset by unearned tax revenue of approximately
$2,566,000 in the fund financial statements and represents an estimate of the tax liens which will not be collected
within the first sixty days of the subsequent year.,

The 2012 real property tax levy for City purposes totaled $11,462,426. The City is permitted by the constitution of
New York State to levy taxes up 1o 2% of the five year average for assessed valuation for general governmental
services other than the payment of debt service and capital expenditures. The constitutional tax limit of the City
of Auburn, New York for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was $20,780,541 leaving a margin of $9,318,118.
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MNote 7 - Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets at June 30, 2012 follows:

Governmental activities:
Non-depreciable capital assets
Land
Construction in progress
Total non-depreciable capitat assets

Depreciable capital assets
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and eguipment
infrastructure
Total depreciable capitat assets

Tetal cost

Less accumuiated depreciation
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-type activilies:
Non-depreciable capital assets
tand
Construction in progress
Tota! non-depreciable capital assets

Depreciable capital assets
Buildings and improvemeants
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total depreciable capital assets

Total histerical cost

Less accumudated depreciation
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Business-type activities capital assets, net

June 30, 2011 Additions Disposals Reclassifications tune 30, 2012
$ 4,252,631 5 -8 -5 -8 4,252,631
5,325,900 4,702,026 {378,939) (4,862,708} 5,786,279
10,578,531 4,702,026 {378,939} (4,862,708} 10,038,510
38,542,824 32,220 - - 38,575,044
35,702,486 1,085,067 {1,312,023) 670,254 36,145,784
81,454,833 126,279 - 4,192,454 85,773,565
155,700,143 1,243,566 {1,312,023) 4,862,708 160,494,394
166,278,674 5,945,592 (1,680,962) - 170,533,304
{12,481,110) {882,781} - - (13,363,891}
{22,599,396) (1,633,728} 450,447 B (23,782,677}
(30,218,004} (2,017,349) - - {32,235,353)
(65,298,510} (4,533,858) 450,447 - {65,381,921)
$100,980,164  $1,411,734  ${1,240,515) § - $101,151,383
june 30, 2031 Additions Disposais Reclassifications June 30, 2012
§ 420,187 % - % -5 - % 420,187
428,187 - - " 420,187
23,129,837 - - - 23,129,837
4,036,920 326,077 {1,220) - 4,261,777
265,856 - - - 265,856
27,432,613 326,077 {1,220} - 27,757,470
27,852,800 326077 {1,220) - 28,177,657
{16,188,666) (797,016)‘ - - {16,385,682)
{1,753,282) {181,380} 1,220 - {1,973,442)
{3,571) {102) - - {3.673)
{17,585,519} (978,458) 1,220 - {18,962,757)

$  G867,281 5 {652,421} § - 5 - S 8,214,860
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Note 7 — Capital Assets (continued)
Depreciation expense was charged to the functions as follows:

Governmenial activities

General governmental support ) 137,955
Public safety 510,608
Transportation 1,271,277
Culture and recreation 177,079
Home and community services 2,436,939

Total governmental activities S 4,533,858

Business-type activities

Power utility S 89,554
Solid waste 888,944
Total business-type activities S 978,498

Note 8 - Pension Plans
Plan Descriptions

The City of Auburn, New York participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System (ERS),
the New York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System (PFRS), and the Public Employees’ Group Life
Insurance Plan {the “Systems”). These are cost sharing multiple-employer retirement systems.

The Systems provide retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Obligations of employers, and
employees to contribute, and benefits to employees are governed by the New York State Retirement and Social
Security Law {NYSRSSL). As set forth in the NYSRSSE, the Comptroller of the State of New York (Comptrolier)
serves as a sole trustee and administrative head of the Systems.

The Comptroller shall adopt and may amend rules and regulations for the administration and business
transactions of the Systems, and for the custody and control of their funds. The Systems issue a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be
obtained by writing to the New York State and Local Retirement Systems, 110 State Street, Albany, NY 12244.

Funding Policies

The Systems are noncontributory, except for employees who joined the New York State and Local Employee’s
Retirement System after july 27, 1976, who contribute 3% of their salary. Under the authority of the NYSSRSSL,
the Comptroller shall certify annually the rates expressed as proportions of the payroll of members, which

shall be used in computing the contributions required to be made by employers to the pension accumulation
fund.
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Note 8 - Pension Pians {continued)

in July 2000, Article 19 was added to the Retirement and Social Security Law, which provides benefit
enhancement for non-state employees. Members enrolled in Tier 1 and 2 will receive an additional month of
service for each year of credited service, up to a maximum of 24 months. Tier 3 and 4 members witl no longer
contribute 3% of their salary when they have been a member of the System for at least ten years or have ten or
more years credited service,

The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The required contributions for the current
year and two preceding years were:

Year ERS PFRS

2012 S 828,071 S 1,965,646
2011 881,885 1,500,170
2010 591,567 1,508,456

The City’s contributions made to the Systems were equal to 100% of the contributions required for each year.

On May 14, 2003, Chapter 49 of the Laws of 2003 of the State of New York was enacted which made the following
changes to the Systems:

e Requires minimum contributions by employers of 4.5% of payroll every year, including years in which the
investment performance would make a lower contribution possible,

¢ Changes the cycle of annual billing such that the contribution for a given fiscal year will be based on the
value of the pension fund on the prior April 1st {e.g. billings due February 2008 would be based on the
pension value as of March 31, 2007).

o Allows one-time financing of State fiscal year 2004-2005 pension cost by permitting local governments to
bond, over five years, any required contribution in excess of 7% of estimated salaries or to amortize

required contributions in excess of 7% over a five year period. [Superseded by Chapter 260 of the Laws of
2004. See helow.]

On July 30, 2004, Chapter 260 of the Laws of 2004 of the State of New York was enacted that allows local
employers to bond or amortize a portion of their retirement bill for up to ten years in accordance with the
following schedule:

e For State fiscal year (SFY} 2004-05, the amount in excess of 7% of employees’ covered pensionable
salaries, with the first payment of those pension costs not due until the fiscal year succeeding that fiscal
year in which the bonding/amortization was instituted.

e  ForSFY 2005-06, the amount in excess of 9.5% of employees’ covered pensionable salaries.

e For SFY 2006-07, the amount in excess of 10.5% of employees’ covered pensionable salaries.
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MNote 8 - Pension Plans (continued)

This law requires participating employers to make payments on a current basis, while bonding or amortizing
existing unpaid amounts relating to the System’s fiscal years ending March 31, 2005 through 2007. The City has
opted to amortize $1,118,541 of payments over ten years. As of June 30, 2012 the unamortized portion was
$394,479, with an expected amortization of $125,132 in fiscal year 2012,

Note § - Short-term Debt

Bond Anticipation Notes Payable - Bond Anticipation Notes {BANs) issued in anticipation of proceeds from the
subsequent sale of bonds are recorded as current liabilities of the funds that will actually receive the proceeds
from the issuance of the bonds. Such notes may be ciassified as long-term debt when {1} the intention is to
refinance the debt on a long-term basis and (2) the intention can be substantiated through a post balance sheet
issuance of long-term debt or by an acceptable financing agreement. State law requires that Bond Anticipation
Notes issued for capital purposes be converted to long-term financing within five years after the original issue
date. The City issues Bond Anticipation Notes to finance capital improvements.

At June 30, 2012, the City had outstanding BANs of $9,720,239 which were issued in June 1, 2012 at an interest
rate of 1.50%, due May 31, 2013.

New lssues/ Maturities/
June 30, 2011 Additions Payments June 30, 2012
Governmental activities:
Capital project funds 511,269,700 8,539,539 11,269,700 S 8,539,539
Business-type activities:
Power utility fund 1,200,000 1,180,700 1,200,000 1,180,700
Total bond anticipation notes 512,469,700 S 9,720,239 $12,469,700 S 9,720,239

Short-term debt Interest - Interest on BANs in the governmental activities and business-type activities
approximated $167,000 and $19,000, respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2012.
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Note 10 - Lease Commitments
Capital Leases

A summary of changes in capital lease obligations of governmental activities follows:

jupe 30, 2011 Additions Payments June 30, 2012

Governmental activities:
Fire truck S 146,243 S - S 71,618 S 74,625
Fire truck 115,916 - 56,766 59,150
Fire truck 588,875 - 43,214 545,661
Utility trucks 50,483 - 50,483 -
S 901,517 S - ) 222,081 S 679,436

The present value of capital leases are:

Year Ending June 30,

2013 202,806

2014 65,976

2015 65,893

2016 65,807

2017 65,717

2018-2022 ' 327,099

793,298

Less amount representing interest 113,862
Present value of future minimum lease payments S 679,436
Cost of equipment $ 1,258,360

These leases are payable from the General, Water and Sewer funds. Items under capital leases are recorded as
equipment.

Operating Leases
The City leases various vehicles under non-cancelable operating leases, which are not material to the City.

Note 11 - Long-term Debt

At June 30, 2012, the total outstanding indebtedness {bonds, BANs, notes, and leases payable} of the City's
primary government aggregated $74,744,161. Of this amount $38,960,996 is subject to the constitutional debt
limit and represenied 48.6% of its debt imit,
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Mote 11 - Long-term Debt {continued)

Serial Bonds

The City borrows money in order to acquire land or equipment, or construct buildings and make improvements.
This enables the cost of these capital assets to be borne by the present and future taxpayers receiving the benefit
of the capital assets. These long-term liabilities, which are given on the full faith and credit of the local
government, are recorded in the government-wide financial statements and the enterprise funds. The provision
to be made in future budgets for capital indebtedness represents the amount, exclusive of interest, authorized to
be collected in future years from taxpayers and others, for liquidation of the long-term liabilities. Serial bond
liability is liquidated through the City's General, Power Utility, Solid Waste, Water, and Sewer Funds,

Compensated Absences

Represents the value of the earned and unused portion of the liability for employee compensated absences. The
City’s General, Water, Sewer, and Solid Waste Funds liquidate this fiability.

Claims and Judgments

Represents the estimated liability for claims for workers’ compensation that have been incurred but not reported.
The City's General Fund liquidates this fiability. See Note 14 for more information concerning this liability.

Self-Insurance Liability

Represents the City’s estimated lability for claims for property, casualty and professional liability. The City's
General Fund liquidates this liabifity. See Note 14 for more information concerning this liabifity.

HUD Section 108 Note

The City has taken advantage of an advance under a Variable Fixed Rate Note guaranteed pursuant to Section 108
of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, The Special Grant Fund liquidates this liability.

Due to Employees’ Retirement System

Represents the portion of the liability to the various state retirement systems. The City’s General, Solid Waste,
Water, and Sewer Funds liquidate this liability.
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Note 11 - Long-term Debt {continued)

Changes in Indebtedness

A summary of changes in the City's indebtedness is as follows:

Amount Due
New lssues/ Maturities/ Within
June 30, 2011 Additions Payments June 30, 2012 One Year
Governmental activities:

Generai obligation bonds 544,591,879 § -5 4,058,334 $40,533,545 § 3,689,568
HUD Section 108 note pavyable 979,000 - 130,000 849,000 140,000

Other long-term labilities:

Due to employees
retirement systems 513,652 - 119,173 394,479 125,132
Lease obligations payable 501,517 - 222,081 679,436 178,804
Other postemployment benefits 5,159,949 2,827,435 2,125,192 5,862,182 2,808,765
ludgments and claims payable 603,826 100,213 20,406 683,633 683,633
Compensated absences 1,936,726 1,623,811 1,936,726 1,623,811 1,623,811
Self insurance liability 27,215 713,497 27,215 713,497 29,725
Total other long-term liabilities 9,142,885 5,264,956 4,450,793 9,857,048 5,449,874
Total indebtedness $ 54,713,764 S 5,264,956 S 8,639,127 S 51,339,593 5 9,279,542
Amount Due
New lssues/ Maturities/ Within
June 30, 2011 Additions Payments june 30, 2012 One Year
Business-type activities:

General obligation bonds:
Total general obligation bonds S 9,458,500 5 - § 1,286,700 S 8,172,200 S 1,137,800

Other long-term ligbiities:
tandfill post closure liability 5,147,857 364,272 - 5,512,129 460,000
Total indebtedness 14,606,757 S 364,272 5 1,286,700 $13,684,329 $ 1,597,800
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Debt Maturity Scheduies

The following is a summary of bonds outstanding at June 30, 2012 with correspaending maturity schedules:

Bonds Payahle Issue Date Maturity Interest Balance
Water Pollution 07/01/99 11/01/18 0.00% S 2,920,000
Public Improvement 06/16/00 06/15/15 5.375%-5.500% 560,000
Public Improvement 03/15/01 03/01/22 0.00% 91,644
Public Improvement 04/12/01 -03/01/17 0.00% 225,942
Sewer Refunding 06/20/02 11/15/24 1.326%-1.632% 635,000
Sewer Refunding 06/20/02 05/15/24 1.414%-1.941% 20,510,000
NYS EFC 03/13/03 04/15/17 801%-2.137% 625,000
Public Improvement 056/01/03 06/01/23 3.25%-4.125% 2,985,000
NYS EFC 07/24/03 0i/15/24 721%-3.338% 690,000
NYS EFC 07/24/03 01/15/24 .790%-4.500% 1,605,000
Public Improvement 06/01/06 06/01/26 4,125%-4.200% 2,920,000
Public Improvement 06/01/08 06/01/22 1.890%-2.570% 2,520,000
NYPA Energy Conservation (33/01/09 03/01/29 1.92% 3,543,159
Public Improvement 6/1/2011 06/01/23 2%-4% 8,875,000

Total general obligation bonds S 48,705,745

The following table summarizes the City's future debt service requirements for bonds for June 30,

Years Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Ending Principal Interest Subsidy Principal Interest Subsidy
2013 $ 3,689,668 S5 1,155,233 § 507,564 S 1,137,800 S 328,185 $ 13,589
2014 3,695,451 1,070,969 472,824 1,149,800 285,374 10,980
2015 3,683,248 977,487 43,400 829,800 249,623 8,371
2016 3,631,061 884,522 397,102 849,800 218,452 5,653
2017 3,654,564 795,079 358,768 884,300 188,505 2,827
2018-2022 15,715,341 2,507,781 1,173,950 3,268,500 422,089 -
2023-2027 6,065,141 392,535 151,235 51,700 7,485 -
2028-2032 395,071 3,265 - - - -

$ 40,533,545 § 7,785,871 S 3,104,883 $ 8,172,200 § 1,699,723 $ 41,420

Interest paid on the Serial Bonds varies from year to year, in accordance with the interest rates specified in the
bond agreements. The interest subsidy column reflects 50% of the amount of interest the City is required to pay
on various bonds, which is subsidized by the NYS Environmental Facilities Corporation, a public benefit
corporation within the State.
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The following table summarizes the City's future debt service requirements for notes for June 30:

Years Governmental Activities
Ending Principal interest Total
2013 S 146,000 32,958 S 172,958
2014 156,000 27,284 177,284
2015 160,000 20,972 180,972
2016 170,000 13,979 183,979
2017 229,000 7,383 236,383
S 849,000 S 102,576 § 951,576

interest paid on notes varies from year to year, in accordance with the interest rates specified in the note

agreements.

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the City of Auburn, New York recognized interest expense of $1,882,110 for

governmental activities and $253,157 for business-type activities.

Note 12 - interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds including
expenditures and transfers of resources primarily to provide services. The governmental funds financial
statements generally reflect such transactions as transfers whereas the proprietary funds record such transactions
as non-operating revenues or expenses. The City generally maintains its cash in few accounts, whereby the City

pools its cash to provide both cash flow and interest income maximization across the City as a2 whole.

The City also loans resources between funds for the purpose of mitigating the effects of transient cash flow issues.

All interfund payables are expected to be repaid within one year.

Governmental funds:
General Fund
Sewer Fund
Special Grant Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Non-Major governmental funds
Total governmental funds
Enterprise funds:
Power Utility Fund
Solid Waste Fund
Total enterprise funds
Total

interfund Interfund Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables Transfers In Transfers Qut
S 7,959,555 S - S 34,000 $ 505,000
- 802,946 - 2,652,000
- 132,255 - -
- 5,517,080 3,000,000 34,000
- 580,050 57,000 400,000
7,959,555 7,032,341 3,091,000 3,591,000
- 1,187,401 500,000 -
260,187 - - -
260,187 1,187,401 500,000 -
$ 8,219,742 S 8,219,742 S 3,591,000 S 3,591,000
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Note 12 - Interfund Transactions {continued)

At June 30, 2012, the interfund balance due from the Power Utility fund to the General fund was approximately
$1,187,000. The commitments of the Power Utility fund are more fully described in Note 18. City management
has continued its efforts to develop various options to enhance the financial viability of the Power Utility fund and
believes that it will increase revenues and other financing sources and reduce expenses going forward.
Accordingly, management projects that the balances due to the General fund will be repaid by the Power Utility
fund over its operating cycle.

Note 13 - Other Postemployment Benefits

The City provides postemployment {health insurance, etc.} coverage to retired employees in accordance with the
provisions of various employment contracts. The benefit coverage is a self-funded medical and prescription drug
plan for retirees. The benefit levels, employee contributions and employer contributions are governed by the
City’s contractual agreements.

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This required the City to
calculate and record a net other postemployment benefit obligation at year-end. The net other postemployment
benefit obligation is the cumulative difference between the actuarially required contribution and the actual
contributions made.

The City recognizes the cost of providing health insurance annually as expenditures in the General Fund of the
funds financial statements as payments are made. For the year ended June 30, 2012 the City recognized
approximately $2,125,000 for its share of insurance costs for currently enrolled retirees. The City’s plan is a single-
employer postemployment benefit plan. There is not a separate, audited GAAP postemployment benefit plan
report.

The City has obtained an actuarial valuation report as of June 30, 2012 which indicates that the liability for other
postemployment benefits is $5,862,192, which is reflected in the Statement of Net Assets.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: The City’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost
{expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities {or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components
of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City's
net OPEB obligation to the plan:
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June 30, 2012

Annual required contribution S 2,808,765
interest on net OPEB obligation 232,198
Adjustment to annual reguired contribution {213,528)

Annual OPEB cost 2,827,435
Contributions made (2,125,192}

increase in net OPER obligation 702,243
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 5,159,949
Net OPLEB obligation - end year & 5,862,192

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEBR cost contributed to the pltan, and the net OPEB
obligation for fiscal 2012 and the two preceding years are as follows:

% of Annual

Annual QOPEB Cost Net OPEB

Fiscal year ended OPEB Cost Contrihutions Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2012 S 2,827,435 S 2,125,192 75.2% S 5,862,192
June 30, 2011 3,027,986 1,334,755 44.1% 5,159,949
June 30, 2010 3,027,986 1,334,755 44.1% 3,466,718

Funded Status and Funding Progress: As of June 30, 2012, the plan was 0% funded. The actuarial accrued fiability
for benefits was $45,789,831, and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued
liability (UAAL) of $45,789,831. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
approximately $14.2 mitlion, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was approximately 323%. Actuarial
valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
prabability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the
annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

GASB Statement No. 45 requires a supplementary schedule of funding progress which presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. The City has not begun to fund the liability which is not required by GASB
Statement No. 45. In addition, New York State has not yet set up a trust fund to allow for funding.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan {the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members} and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
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MNote 13 - Other Fostemployment Benefits (continued)

employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial vaiue of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

in the June 30, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation, the Entry Age Normal Method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 0% investment rate of return {net of administrative expenses), which is a blended rate of
the expected iong-term investment returns on plan assets and on the employer’s own investments calculated
based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate 4.2%
increasing to 10.8% in 2014 for medicai reduced by decrements te an ultimate rate of 4.2%. Both rates included a
3% inflation assumption. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open group
basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2012, was 28 years.

Note 14 - Self insurance and Contingent Liabilities

Workers' Compensation and Professional Liability Claims

The City’s policy is to record expenditures for workers' compensation claims in the governmental fund from which
they are paid. During the current year, the City has accrued $713,497 of workers' compensation claims on the
statement of net assets as self-insurance liability which are expected be paid out over the next twenty-four years.
Judgments and Claims

As of June 30, 2012, the City has estimated a liability for judgments and claims of approximately $684,000. The
City has accrued approximately $684,000 in general claims, there are no pending certiorari claims, this Hability is
included in property, casualty and professional liability.  In the past three years, no settlements exceeded

insurance coverage, all claims are expected be become due within one year.

The schedule below presents the changes in claims liabilities for the past two years for the property, casualty,
professional liability, and police and fire workers' compensation:

Property, Casualty and Police and Fire Workers'
Professional Liability Compensation
2012 2011 2012 2011
Unpaid ¢laims and claim adjustment
expenses - beginning of year S 603,826 $ 251,774 S 27,215 § 95,248
Provisions and changes in provisions for
claims and claim adjustment expenses: 100,213 404,165 713,497 {10,544)
Payments on claims and claims adjustment
expenses attributable to insured events: 20,406 52,113 27,215 57,489
Total unpaid claims and claim
adjustment expenses - end of year S 683,633 S 603,826 S 713,457 S 27,215
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Mote 15 - Landfills - Closure and Post Closure Care Costs

‘State and Federal laws and reguiations require the City to place a final cover on its landfill sites when they stop
accepting waste, and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the sites for thirty years after
closure. In accordance with these regulations, the City had previously adopted Governmental Accounting
Standards No. 18, “Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post Closure Care Costs.”

Although closure and post closure care cost will be paid near or after the date the landfill stops accepting waste,
the City reports a portion of these closure and post closure care costs as an operation expense in each period
based on landfill capacity used.

The $5.5 million reported as landfill closure and post closure care liability at june 30, 2012 represents
approximately $1.2 million anticipated closing costs and $3.3 million post closure costs and $1.0 million of post
closure care monitoring for landfill site #1, which was closed September, 1992,

The $4.5 million of the total anticipated closing costs for landfill site #2 is based on 87% usage (billed) for landfill
site #2 as the estimated capacity is filled. Actual cost may be different due to inflation, changes in technology, or
changes in regulations. Post closure monitoring care costs remaining 1o be recognized are estimated to be
$3,300,000. Estimated closure costs remaining to be recognized are $1,200,000.

The anticipated remaining life of landfill #2, including cell 4, is about three years, based on maximum permitted
tonnage of 96,000 tons per year, which is currently being utilized.

The unfunded lability for post closure costs is accounted for on an annual basis by appropriation of the necessary
funds in the City operating budget. There is a resulting reduction in the amount of the unfunded Hability with
each year's budget appropriaticn.

Closure costs for cells 1, 2, 3 and 4 of landfill site #2 will be met primarily with the issuance of bonds and available
cash reserves at the time of closure. The City has obtained the certification required for compliance with the
Financial Assurance Requirements for Local Government Owners/Qperators of Municipal Solid Waste Landfills.

hote 16 - Deferred Compensation

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The Plan is administered by Public Employees Benefit Services Corporation (PEBSCO). The City had
adopted the changes to its deferred compensation plan that bring the Plan in compliance with the requirements
of subsection (G) of IRS section 457 and GASB Statement No. 32,

The Plan is available to all full-time and permanent part-time City employees and permits them to defer a portion
of their salary until future vears. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,

retirement or death, or unforeseeable emergency.

The City and Nationwide Trust Company, FSB, entered info a trust agreement on November 17, 1999. The City
adopted a model plan, which requires all amounts of deferred compensation be held in trust for the exclusive
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Note 16 - Deferred Compensation {continued)

benefit of its participants and their beneficiaries. The City has designated Nationwide Trust Company, FSB, as
trustee in accordance with the New York State Deferred Compensation Board Rules and Regulations, as set forth
at Part 000 to Part 9006 of Subtitle If Title 9 NYCRR (the “Regulations” as published in the State Register on luly
1, 1899, with an effective date of October 1, 1999} and Section 457 {g} of the Internal Revenue Code of 1988, as
amended (the “Code”) to hold these group annuity contracts under the City of Auburn’s Model Plan for the
exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries.

At no time will any part of the corpus or income of the Trust Fund be used or delivered for purposes other than
for the exclusive benefit of employees and their beneficiaries. The Trust Fund cannot revert to the State or City
until ail plan benefits have been paid to participants or beneficiaries.

Mote 17 - Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies,
principally the Federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounis already collected, may constitute a
liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot
be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these suits is not presently determinable, in
the opinion of the City’s Corporation Counsel, the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse
effect on the financial condition or results of operations.

Note 18 - Commitments

As of June 30, 2012, the City had outstanding contracts with various vendors for the construction of the following
capital projects:

Transportation S 358,202
Home and community 73,280
§ 431,482

The City has a fifteen year Energy Services Agreement (ESA) to purchase all electricity from Auburn Energy, LLC
electric co-generation facility {the facility} at the rate of 5.06 per kilowatt-hour {kWh) through 2024. The rate of
$.06 per kWh was established in the ESA and required a payment of $1,900,000 by the City to Auburn Energy, LLC
to “huy down” the rate to the amount specified in the agreement. The ESA states the facility will produce, and the
City will purchase, a minimum of 17,520,000 kWh per year resulting in an annual commitment of approximately
$1,050,000 in electricity purchases by the City.

The City is also required to provide methane gas produced by the landfills to the Auburn Energy, LLC facility which
is then converted to electricity. In the event that there is not enough methane produced to generate 17,520,000
kWh per year, the methane must be supplemented with natural gas at the City's cost. During fiscal 2012,
approximately $7,300 of natural gas was purchased to supplement the methane produced by the landfills. Should
the landfills produce enough methane to generate over the minimum required kWh per year, the rate to purchase
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MNote 18 — Commitments {continued)

additional electricity over the annual minimum will be reduced as described in the agreement. At the termination
of the contract, the City may elect to purchase the co-generation facility at fair market value,

The above rate buy down payment of $1,900,000 to Auburn Energy, LLC, previously capitalized as intangible asset,
was written off as an impairment loss during fiscal 2011 and reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets -~ Proprietary Funds. '
Note 19 - Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability — Deficit Fund Balancas

Two of the City’s funds had deficit fund balances of $667,065 in the Capital Projects Fund and $760,148 in the

Power Utility fund. The Capital Projects fund deficit is expected to be eliminated with permanent financing and
the City is currently in the process of developing a plan to eliminate the deficit in the Power Utility fund.
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CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund - Non-GAAP Budget Basis
For the year ended june 30, 2012

Original Final
Budget Budget Actuzl Variance
REVENUES
Real property taxes £11,089,372 511,089,372 $10,995,478 5 {93,884)
Real property tax items 637,000 637,000 642,129 5,128
Nonproperty tax items 9,044,000 3,044,000 8,718,687 (325,313)
Departmenizi income 506,300 990,973 885,323 (105,650)
intergovernmental charges 307,500 307,500 295,495 {12,005}
Use of money and property - 150,000 150,600 101,482 {48,518)
Licenses and permits 127,800 127,800 120,115 {7,685}
Fines and forfeitures 343,050 343,050 311,078 {31,972}
Sale of property and compensation for oss 211,500 211,500 288,941 77,441
Miscellaneous local scurces 244,200 244,200 731,778 487,578
Interfund revenues 3,210,824 3,210,824 2,077,526 {1,133,298)
State sources 5,588,293 5,959,534 5,496,003 {503,531}
Federal sources 108,624 109,624 64,581 {45,043}
Total revenues 32,369,463 32,465,377 30,728,616 (1,736,761}
EXPENDITURES
General governmental support 3,584,948 3,605,781 2,765,100 {840,681)
Public safety 12,590,884 12,762,510 12,802,623 40,113
Transportation 2,064,095 1,848,401 1,730,627 {117,774)
Economic assistance and opportunity 55,000 55,0G0 55,000 -
Culture and recreation 1,508,718 1,506,719 1,460,064 {48,655)
Home and community services 1,386,727 1,356,991 1,758,937 403,946
Employee benefits 8,723,093 8,111,860 8,092,988 (1,018,872}
Debt service - principal and interest 3,198,310 3,187,720 3,138,077 (49,643}
Total expenditures 33,117,775 33,434,982 31,803,416 {1,631,565)
Excess of {expenditures) revenues {748,312) {969,605) {1,074,800) (105,195)
OTHER EINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Tax stahilization reserve 1,738,312 1,754,262 - {1,754,282)
Interfund transfers in - “ 34,000 34,000
Interfund transfers out {990,000} {1,020,000) {505,000} 515,000
Total other financing sources 748,312 734,262 (471,000) (1,205,262)
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over {expenditures) and other (uses} S - S {235,343) {1,545,800} S (1,310,457}
Net change in encumbrances {108,179}
Net change in fund balance {1,653,979)
Fund balances - beginning of year 8,882,670
Fund balances - end of year S 7,228,091

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Budgeted Major Special Revenue Fund - Non-GAAP Budget Basis
For the year ended fune 30, 2012

Sewer Fund
Criginal Final .
Budget Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Departmental income S 7,667,500 S 7,867,500 S 6,981,144 S {686,356)
Use of money and property 8,000 8,000 3,992 {4,008)
Sale of property and compensation for loss - - 6,570 6,570
Miscellaneous local spources 10,000 10,000 57,789 47,785
Interfund revenues 110,000 110,000 100,612 (9,388}
Total revenues 7,795,500 7,795,500 7,150,157 {645,393}
EXPENDITURES ‘
General governmental support 223,750 223,750 93,608 {130,142}
Home and community services 4,008,360 4,392,068 3,576,128 (815,940}
Employee benefiis 662,956 652,375 613,236 (39,340}
Debt service - principal and interest 2,850,434 2,850,434 2,790,855 (59,539}
Total expenditures 7,745,500 8,118,628 7,073,867 {1,044,761)
Excess of revenues {expenditures} 50,000 {323,128) 76,240 399,368
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Interfund transfers out (50,000) (2,650,000) (2,652,000} {2,000)
Total cther financing (uses} sources (50,000) (2,650,600) (2,652,000} {2,000}
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over {expenditures} and other (uses} 8 B S {2,973,128) {2,575,760) S {397,368)
Net change in encumbrances {69,127)
Net change in fund balance (2,644,887}
Fund balances - beginning of year 3,227,093

Fund balances - end of year ) 582,206

The notes to the reguired supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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CITY OF AUBURN, NEW YORK
Notes to Required Supplementary information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Note 1 - Budget Basis of Accounting

Except as indicated below, budgets are adopted annually on a basis consistent with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Appropriations authorized for the current year are
increased by the amount of encumbrances carried forward from the prior year. Encumbrances are not
considered a disbursement in the financial plan or expenditure in GAAP based financial statements.
Encumbrances reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation for purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments not expended at year end, thereby ensuring that appropriations are not exceeded.

1. Annual operating budgets are maintained for the following Governmental Fund Types:
- General Fund
- Special Revenue Funds {Water and Sewer Funds)

The Special Grant Fund (in Special Revenue Funds} and other Governmental Fund types do not have
annual budgets, as grant awards and revenues received under other contractual requirements

recorded in these funds span more than a single fiscal year.

The City Charter requires that operating budgets be submitted to the Mayor and City Council at least
30 days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year.

2. No later than June 1, the City Manager submits the tentative City budget to the City Council and files
it with the City Clerk. Upon filing the tentative City budget, a notice is published in the official
newspapers of the City.

3. After the public hearing on the recommended budgets, the Mayor and City Council adopt the final
City budget no later than June 20.

4. Annual budgets adopted represent the legal Himit on expendifures for that period. At the end of
each year unexpended, unencumbered appropriations lapse. Encumbered appropriations do not
lapse and are carried forward.

5. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level.

6. Budget changes within a fund may be authorized by the City Manager and the Comptrolier.

7. City Council may increase the appropriations budget during the fiscal year where additional revenues
or expenditures not involved in the original adopted budget are identified.
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Note 2 - Reconciliation of the General Fund Budgét Basis to GAAP

Adjustments necessary to convert the General fund’s excess of revenues and other sources over expenditures
and other uses on the GAAP basis to the budget basis are provided below:

Deficit of revenues and other sources over expenditures
and other uses - GAAP basis S 1,653,979

Beginning of year adjustment for prior year encumbrances
recognized as expenditures {235,050)

End of year adjustment for current year encumbrances not
recognized as expenditures 126,871

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Qver Expenditures
and Other Uses - Budget Basis 5 1,545,800

Mote 3 - Reconciliation of the Sewer Fund Budget Basis to GAAP

Adjustments necessary to convert the Sewer fund’s excess of revenues and other sources over expenditures
and other uses on the GAAP basis to the budget basis are provided below:

Excess of revenues and other sources gver expenditures
and other uses - GAAP basis s (2,644 887)

Beginning of year adjustment for prior year encumbrances
recognized as expenditures 73,128

End of year adjustment for current year encumbrances not
recognized as expenditures {4,001

Excess of Revenues and Other Sourcaes Over Expenditures
and Other Uses - Budget Basis ) {2,575,760)
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